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GRAND PLAZA HOTEL CORPORATION 
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

                     December 31 

  Note 2015 2014 

ASSETS    

Current Assets    
Cash and cash equivalents  4, 26 P239,183,149 P237,078,063 
Receivables - net  5, 14, 26 106,060,371 304,110,706 
Loan receivable  9, 14, 26 15,500,000 15,500,000 
Due from related parties  14, 26 50 350 
Inventories  6 12,340,792 13,993,229 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets  7 14,074,733 12,230,638 

Total Current Assets  387,159,095 582,912,986 

Noncurrent Assets    
Property and equipment - net  10 590,922,343 624,662,660 
Investment in an associate  8, 14 52,613,701 50,241,237 
Deferred tax assets - net 22 8,958,812 12,398,139 
Other noncurrent assets  11, 14, 20, 26 87,791,609 84,095,791 

Total Noncurrent Assets  740,286,465 771,397,827 

  P1,127,445,560 P1,354,310,813 

    

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY    

Current Liabilities    
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 12, 26 P83,099,316 P77,919,262 
Refundable deposits - current portion 19, 20, 25 25,349,438 49,346,738 
Due to related parties  14, 20, 26 6,798,190 6,090,243 
Income tax payable  -     1,802,477 
Other current liabilities  13, 26 17,827,940 230,761,713 

Total Current Liabilities  133,074,884 365,920,433 

Noncurrent Liabilities    
Refundable deposits - net of current portion 19, 20, 25 5,396,673 6,773,081 
Accrued retirement benefits liability 21 25,489,767 26,634,668 

Total Noncurrent Liabilities  30,886,440  33,407,749 

Total Liabilities  163,961,324 399,328,182 

Equity    
Capital stock 24 873,182,700 873,182,700 
Additional paid-in capital  14,657,517 14,657,517 
Remeasurement gains on defined  

benefit plan 21 7,425,564 4,696,038 
Retained earnings:    

Appropriated 23 1,680,020,370 1,680,020,370 
Unappropriated  68,218,455 62,446,376 

Treasury stock 24 (1,680,020,370) (1,680,020,370) 
Total Equity  963,484,236 954,982,631 

  P1,127,445,560 P1,354,310,813 

   

See Notes to the Financial Statements.    

 



 

 

GRAND PLAZA HOTEL CORPORATION 
STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS 

 Years Ended December 31 

 Note 2015 2014 2013 

REVENUES     
Rooms  P287,584,011 P312,084,720 P336,688,055 
Food and beverage  137,481,964 141,017,832 158,290,397 
Other operating departments  4,767,442 6,491,294 6,665,324 
Others  20 17,518,267 7,353,953 81,009,951 

   447,351,684 466,947,799 582,653,727 

COST OF SALES AND 
SERVICES 15    

Food and beverage  50,925,932 53,388,923 56,283,435 
Other operating departments  3,581,260 2,897,083 3,466,534 

  54,507,192 56,286,006 59,749,969 

  392,844,492 410,661,793 522,903,758 

SELLING EXPENSES 16 192,493,454 211,628,674 214,534,010 

ADMINISTRATIVE 
EXPENSES 17 212,349,400 217,135,639 199,528,308 

  404,842,854 428,764,313 414,062,318 

NET OPERATING INCOME 
(LOSS)  (11,998,362) (18,102,520) 108,841,440 

OTHER INCOME 
(EXPENSES)     

Foreign exchange gain   9,379,100 180,991 7,126,239 
Interest income 4, 9, 11, 14, 20 8,946,563 5,344,592 7,125,401 
Income from refundable deposits 19 3,986,875 -     -     
Equity in net income of an associate 8 2,372,464 1,774,099 611,039 
Loss on disposal of property and 

equipment 10 (1,166,747) -     -     
Reversal of accruals 12 -     14,767,900 -     
Others  880,460 -     76,700 

   24,398,715 22,067,582 14,939,379 

INCOME BEFORE  
INCOME TAX  12,400,353 3,965,062 123,780,819 

INCOME TAX EXPENSE 22 6,628,274 3,571,164 38,204,143 

NET INCOME   P5,772,079 P393,898 P85,576,676 

Basic and Diluted Earnings 
Per Share  18 P0.11 P0.01 P1.53 

     

See Notes to the Financial Statements.   

 
 
 
 
 



 

 

GRAND PLAZA HOTEL CORPORATION 
STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

 Years Ended December 31 

 Note 2015 2014 2013 

NET INCOME   P5,772,079 P393,898 P85,576,676 

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE 
INCOME (LOSS) 21    

Item that will never be 
reclassified to profit or loss     

Remeasurement of net defined 
benefit plan   3,899,323 (1,984,581) (1,469,984) 

Income tax relating to an item 
that will not be reclassified 
subsequently  (1,169,797) 595,374 440,995 

  2,729,526 (1,389,207) (1,028,989) 

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE 
INCOME (LOSS)  P8,501,605 (P995,309) P84,547,687 

     

See Notes to the Financial Statements.   

 
 
 
 



 

 

GRAND PLAZA HOTEL CORPORATION 
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 

 Years Ended December 31 

    Remeasurement    
  Capital Additional Gains on   Treasury  

  Stock Paid-in Defined Benefit             Retained Earnings Stock  
 Note (Note 24) Capital Plan Appropriated Unappropriated (Note 24) Total Equity 

Balance at January 1, 2013  P873,182,700 P14,657,517 P7,114,234 P1,488,311,220 P168,184,952 (P1,488,311,220) P1,063,139,403 
Net income for the year  -     -     -     -     85,576,676 -     85,576,676 
Other comprehensive loss for  

the year 21 -     -     (1,028,989) -     -     -     (1,028,989) 

Total comprehensive income for  
the year  -     -     (1,028,989) -     85,576,676 -     84,547,687 

Appropriation for acquisition of 
treasury shares 23, 24 -     -     -     142,466,650 (142,466,650) (142,466,650)  (142,466,650) 

Balance at December 31, 2013  P873,182,700 P14,657,517 P6,085,245 P1,630,777,870 P111,294,978 (P1,630,777,870) P1,005,220,440 

Forward 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 Years Ended December 31 

    Remeasurement    
  Capital Additional Gains on  Treasury  

  Stock Paid-in Defined Benefit             Retained Earnings Stock  
 Note (Note 24) Capital Plan Appropriated Unappropriated (Note 24) Total Equity 

Balance at January 1, 2014  P873,182,700 P14,657,517 P6,085,245 P1,630,777,870 P111,294,978 (P1,630,777,870) P1,005,220,440 
Net income for the year  -     -     -     -     393,898 -     393,898 
Other comprehensive loss for  

the year 21 -     -     (1,389,207) -     -     -     (1,389,207) 

Total comprehensive loss for  
the year  -     -     (1,389,207) -     393,898 -     (995,309) 

Appropriation for acquisition of 
treasury shares 23, 24 -     -     -     49,242,500 (49,242,500) (49,242,500)  (49,242,500) 

Balance at December 31, 2014  P873,182,700 P14,657,517 P4,696,038 P1,680,020,370 P62,446,376 (P1,680,020,370) P954,982,631 

Forward 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 Years Ended December 31 

    Remeasurement    
  Capital Additional Gains on  Treasury  

  Stock Paid-in Defined Benefit             Retained Earnings Stock  
 Note (Note 24) Capital Plan Appropriated Unappropriated (Note 24) Total Equity 

Balance at January 1, 2015  P873,182,700 P14,657,517 P4,696,038 P1,680,020,370 P62,446,376 (P1,680,020,370) P954,982,631 
Net income for the year  -     -     -     -     5,772,079 -     5,772,079 
Other comprehensive income for  

the year 21 -     -     2,729,526 -     -     -     2,729,526 

Total comprehensive  income for  
the year  -     -     2,729,526 -     5,772,079 -     8,501,605 

Balance at December 31, 2015  P873,182,700 P14,657,517 P7,425,564 P1,680,020,370 P68,218,455 (P1,680,020,370) P963,484,236 

 

See Notes to the Financial Statements. 

 
 
 
 
 



 

 

GRAND PLAZA HOTEL CORPORATION 
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

 Years Ended December 31 

 Note 2015 2014 2013 

CASH FLOWS FROM 
OPERATING ACTIVITIES     

Income before income tax  P12,400,353 P3,965,062 P123,780,819 
Adjustments for:     

Depreciation and amortization 10, 17 39,558,871 38,864,197 36,293,759 
Write-off of receivables 5,17 12,617,105 -     -     
Retirement benefits cost 21 3,154,728 2,952,313 2,824,844 
Loss on disposal of property and 

equipment 10 1,166,747 -     -     
Provision for impairment losses 

on receivables  17, 26 94,343 13,156,558 27,260 
Unrealized foreign exchange loss 

(gain)  (9,033,582) 1,380,284 (3,497,543) 
Interest income 4, 9, 14, 20 (8,946,563) (5,344,592) (7,125,401) 
Equity in net income of an 

associate 8 (2,372,464) (1,774,099) (611,039) 
Operating income before working 

capital changes  48,639,538 53,199,723 151,692,699 
Decrease (increase) in:     

Receivables  (18,400,281) (1,779,537) (13,464,592) 
Inventories  1,652,437 (410,782) 978,254 
Due from related parties  300 1,884,750 242,922 
Prepaid expenses and other 

current assets  306,550 6,252,296 (2,686,903) 
Other noncurrent assets  (3,695,818) -     -     

Increase (decrease) in:     
Accounts payable and accrued 

expenses  5,180,054 351,573 (4,211,202) 
Due to related parties  707,947 3,974,822 (4,728,066) 
Refundable deposits  (25,373,708) 26,999,029 (2,111,085) 
Other current liabilities  (9,131,411) 3,575,163 3,091,261 

Cash generated from (absorbed by) 
operations  (114,392) 94,047,037 128,803,288 

Interest received   8,883,369 11,866,287 2,595,709 
Income taxes paid  (8,311,866) (7,999,596) (50,262,007) 
Retirement benefits paid 21 (400,306) (217,003) (5,808,525) 

Net cash provided by operating 
activities  56,805 97,696,725 75,328,465 

Forward 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 Years Ended December 31 

 Note 2015 2014 2013 

CASH FLOWS FROM 
INVESTING ACTIVITY     

Additions to property and 
equipment 10 (P6,985,301) (P15,886,533) (P13,096,096) 

CASH FLOWS FROM 
FINANCING ACTIVITY     

Acquisition of treasury stock 24 -     (49,242,500) (142,466,650) 

EFFECTS OF EXCHANGE 
RATE CHANGES ON CASH 
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  9,033,582 (1,380,284) 3,497,543 

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) 
IN CASH AND CASH 
EQUIVALENTS  2,105,086 31,187,408 (76,736,738) 

CASH AND CASH 
EQUIVALENTS AT 
BEGINNING OF YEAR 4 237,078,063 205,890,655 282,627,393 

CASH AND CASH 
EQUIVALENTS AT  
END OF YEAR 4 P239,183,149 P237,078,063 P205,890,655 

    

See Notes to the Financial Statements.    

 
 



 

 

GRAND PLAZA HOTEL CORPORATION 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
 
 
1. Reporting Entity 

 
Grand Plaza Hotel Corporation (the “Company”) was incorporated and registered with 
the Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on August 9, 1989 primarily 
to own, lease or manage one or more hotels, inns or resorts, all adjuncts and accessories 
thereto, and all other tourist-oriented businesses as may be necessary in connection 
therewith. The Company is a public company under Section 17.2 of the Securities 
Regulation Code and its shares are listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE). The 
Company is 54% owned by The Philippine Fund Limited (TPFL), a corporation 
organized in the Islands of Bermuda. The ultimate parent of the Company is Hong Leong 
Investment Holdings Pte Ltd., a corporation organized in Singapore. 
 
The Company owns and operates The Heritage Hotel (the “Hotel”), its only operating 
segment, which is a deluxe class hotel that offers 450 rooms and facilities and amenities 
such as restaurants, function halls, and a coffee shop. The address of the Company’s 
registered and principal office is the 10th Floor, The Heritage Hotel Manila, EDSA corner 
Roxas Boulevard, Pasay City.  
 
 

2. Basis of Preparation 
 
Statement of Compliance 
The financial statements have been prepared in compliance with Philippine Financial 
Reporting Standards (PFRSs). PFRSs are based on International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB). 
PFRSs which are issued by the Philippine Financial Reporting Standards Council 
(FRSC), consist of PFRSs, Philippine Accounting Standards (PASs), and Philippine 
Interpretations. 
 
The financial statements as at and for the year ended December 31, 2015 were approved 
and authorized for issue by the Board of Directors (BOD) on February 12, 2016. 
 
Basis of Measurement 
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis of accounting 
except for the present value of the defined benefit obligation less fair value of plan assets, 
if any. 
 
Functional and Presentation Currency 
The Company’s financial statements are presented in Philippine peso, which is the 
Company’s functional currency. All values are rounded off to the nearest peso, except 
when otherwise stated. 
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Use of Estimates and Judgments 
The preparation of the financial statements in accordance with PFRSs requires 
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of 
accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. 
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various 
other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of 
which form the basis of making the judgments about carrying values of assets and 
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Although these estimates are 
based on management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, actual results may 
differ from these estimates. 
 
Judgments are made by management on the developments, selection and disclosure of the 
Company’s critical accounting policies and estimates and the application of these policies 
and estimates. 
 
The estimates and underlying assumptions area reviewed on ongoing basis. Revisions to 
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the 
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the 
revision affects both current and future periods. 
 
The following presents the summary of these judgments and estimates, which have the 
most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements: 
 
Determining whether an Agreement Contains a Lease  
The Company uses its judgment in determining whether an arrangement contains a lease, 
based on the substance of the arrangement at inception date and makes assessment of 
whether the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets, the 
arrangement conveys a right to use the asset and the arrangement transfers substantially 
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the Company. 
 
Operating Lease 
The Company has entered into various lease arrangements either as a lessor or a lessee. 
In determining whether all significant risks and rewards of ownership remain with the 
lessor or transferred to the lessee, the following factors are considered: 
 
a. the ownership of the asset does not transfer at the end of the lease term; 
 
b. there is no option to purchase the asset at a price that is expected to be sufficiently 

lower than the fair value at the date the option becomes exercisable such that, at the 
inception of the lease, it is reasonably certain that the option will be exercised; 

 
c. the lease term is not for the major part of the economic life of the asset even if title is 

not transferred; 
 
d. at the inception of the lease, the present value of the minimum lease payments does 

not amount to at least substantially all of the fair value of the leased asset; and 
 
e. the leased assets are not of such a specialized nature that only the lessee can use them 

without major modifications. 
 
Company as Lessor 
The Company has entered into a lease of its commercial spaces.  The Company has 
determined that it retains all significant risks and rewards of ownership of these spaces 
which are leased out under operating lease arrangements (see Note 20). 
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Company as Lessee 
The Company has entered into a lease of land. All the significant risks and rewards of 
ownership of the leased land remain with the lessor, since the leased property, together 
with the buildings thereon, and all attached permanent fixtures will be returned to the 
lessor upon the termination of the lease (see Note 20). 
 
Estimating Allowance for Impairment Losses on Receivables 
The Company maintains an allowance for impairment losses at a level considered 
adequate to provide for potential uncollectible receivables. The level of this allowance is 
evaluated by management on the basis of factors that affect the collectability of the 
accounts. These factors include, but are not limited to, the length of the Company’s 
relationship with the customers, customers’ payment behavior and known market factors. 
The Company reviews the age and status of receivables, and identifies accounts that are 
to be provided with allowance on a regular basis. The amount and timing of recorded 
expenses for any period would differ if the Company made different judgments or 
utilized different estimates. An increase in allowance for impairment losses would 
increase the recorded administrative expenses and decrease current assets. 
 
As at December 31, 2015 and 2014, allowance for impairment losses on trade receivables 
amounted to P13,406,522  and P13,312,179, respectively (see Note 5). As at 
December s31, 2015 and 2014, the carrying amount of receivables amounted to 
P106,060,371 and P304,110,706 (see Note 5). 
 
Estimating Net Realizable Value of Inventories 
In determining the net realizable value of inventories, the Company considers inventory 
obsolescence, physical deterioration, physical damage and changes in price levels or 
other causes based on specific identification and as determined by management for 
inventories estimated to be salable in the future.  The Company adjusts the cost of 
inventory to recoverable value at a level considered adequate to reflect market decline in 
value of the recorded inventories.  The Company reviews its inventories on a regular 
basis to identify those which are to be written down to net realizable values. 
 
Inventories, at cost, amounted to P12,340,792 and P13,993,229 as at December 31, 2015 
and 2014, respectively (see Note 6). 
 
Estimating Useful Lives of Property and Equipment 
The Company estimates the useful lives of property and equipment based on the period 
over which the assets are expected to be available for use.  The estimated useful lives of 
property and equipment are reviewed periodically and are updated if expectations differ 
from previous estimates due to physical wear and tear, technical or commercial 
obsolescence and legal or other limits on the use of the assets.  In addition, the estimation 
of the useful lives of property and equipment is based on collective assessment of internal 
technical evaluation and experience with similar assets.  It is possible, however, that 
future results of operations could be materially affected by changes in estimates brought 
about by changes in factors mentioned above. The amounts and timing of recorded 
expenses for any period would be affected by changes in these factors and circumstances. 
 
As at December 31, 2015 and 2014, the carrying amount of property and equipment 
amounted to  P590,922,343 and P624,662,660, respectively (see Note 10). 
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Estimating Realizability of Deferred Tax Assets 
The Company reviews the carrying amounts of deferred tax assets at each reporting date 
and reduces deferred tax assets to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient 
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilized. 
The Company also reviews the expected timing and tax rates upon reversal of temporary 
differences and adjusts the impact of deferred tax accordingly. 
 
As at December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Company’s deferred tax assets amounted to  
P14,851,272 and P14,410,727, respectively (see Note 22). 
 
Estimating Retirement Benefits Obligations 
The determination of the obligation and retirement benefits cost is dependent on the 
selection of certain assumptions used by the actuary in calculating such amounts. Those 
assumptions include, among others, discount rates and salary increase rates.  
 
The Company’s retirement benefits liability amounted to P25,489,767 and P26,634,668 
as at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. In 2015 and 2014, the retirement 
benefits cost recognized in profit and loss amounted to P3,154,728 and P2,952,313, 
respectively. Cumulative actuarial gain amounted to P10,607,949 and P6,708,626 as at 
December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively (see Note 21). 
 
Estimating Allowance for Impairment Losses on Nonfinancial Assets 
The Company assesses impairment on nonfinancial assets whenever events or changes in 
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of such asset may not be recoverable. 
The factors that the Company considers important which could trigger an impairment 
review include the following: 
 
� significant underperformance relative to the expected historical or projected future 

operating results; 
 
� significant changes in the manner of use of the acquired assets or the strategy for 

overall business; and  
 
� significant negative industry or economic trends. 
 
An impairment loss is recognized whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its 
recoverable amount. 
 
There were no impairment losses on the Company’s nonfinancial assets recognized as at 
December 31, 2015 and 2014. 
 
Estimating Provisions and Contingencies 
The Company, in the ordinary course of business, sets up appropriate provisions for its 
present legal or constructive obligations in accordance with its policies on provisions and 
contingencies. The estimate of the probable costs for the resolution of possible claims has 
been developed in consultation with its legal counsel and is based upon an analysis of 
potential results. 
 
There were no provisions or contingencies recognized as at December 31, 2015 and 
2014. 
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all the years 
presented in these financial statements, except for the changes in accounting policies as 
explained below.  
 
Adoption of New or Revised Standards, Amendments to Standards and Interpretations  
The Company has adopted the following amendments to standards starting January 1, 
2015 and accordingly, changed its accounting policies. Except as otherwise indicated, the 
adoption of these amendments to standards did not have any significant impact on the 
Company’s financial statements. 
 
� Annual Improvements to PFRSs: 2010 - 2012 and 2011 - 2013 Cycles - Amendments 

were made to a total of nine standards, with changes made to the standards on 
business combinations and fair value measurement in both cycles. Most amendments 
will apply prospectively for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2014. Earlier 
application is permitted, in which case the related consequential amendments to other 
PFRSs would also apply. Special transitional requirements have been set for 
amendments to the following standards: PFRS 2, PAS 16, PAS 38 and PAS 40.  The 
following is one of the said improvements or amendments to PFRSs, none of which 
has a significant effect on the financial statements of the Company: 
 
• Definition of ‘related party’ (Amendment to PAS 24). The definition of a ‘related 

party’ is extended to include a management entity that provides key management 
personnel (KMP) services to the reporting entity, either directly or through a 
group entity. For related party transactions that arise when KMP services are 
provided to a reporting entity, the reporting entity is required to separately 
disclose the amounts that it has recognized as an expense for those services that 
are provided by a management entity; however, it is not required to ‘look 
through’ the management entity and disclose compensation paid by the 
management entity to the individuals providing the KMP services. The reporting 
entity will also need to disclose other transactions with the management entity 
under the existing disclosure requirements of PAS 24 - e.g. loans. 

 
Standards Issued but Not Yet Adopted 
A number of new standards and amendments to standards are effective for annual periods 
beginning after January 1, 2015.  However, the Company has not applied the following 
new or amended standards in preparing these financial statements. Unless otherwise 
stated, none of these are expected to have a significant impact on the Company’s 
financial statements. 
 
Effective January 1, 2016 
 
� Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortization (Amendments 

to PAS 16 and PAS 38). The amendments to PAS 38 Intangible Assets introduce a 
rebuttable presumption that the use of revenue-based amortization methods for 
intangible assets is inappropriate. This presumption can be overcome only when 
revenue and the consumption of the economic benefits of the intangible asset are 
‘highly correlated’, or when the intangible asset is expressed as a measure of 
revenue. 
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The amendments to PAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment explicitly state that 
revenue-based methods of depreciation cannot be used for property, plant and 
equipment. This is because such methods reflect factors other than the consumption 
of economic benefits embodied in the asset - e.g. changes in sales volumes and 
prices. 
 
The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after  
January 1, 2016, and are to be applied prospectively. Early application is permitted. 

 
� Disclosure Initiative (Amendments to PAS 1) addresses some concerns expressed 

about existing presentation and disclosure requirements and to ensure that entities are 
able to use judgment when applying PAS 1. The amendments clarify that: 
 
• Information should not be obscured by aggregating or by providing immaterial 

information. 
 
• Materiality considerations apply to all parts of the financial statements, even 

when a standard requires a specific disclosure. 
 
• The list of line items to be presented in the statement of financial position and 

statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income can be disaggregated 
and aggregated as relevant and additional guidance on subtotals in these 
statements. 

 
• An entity’s share of OCI of equity-accounted associates and joint ventures 

should be presented in aggregate as single line items based on whether or not it 
will subsequently be reclassified to profit or loss. 

 
The amendments are to be applied retrospectively for annual periods beginning on or 
after January 1, 2016. Early adoption is permitted. 
 

Effective January 1, 2018 
 
� PFRS 9, Financial Instruments (2014). PFRS 9 (2014) replaces PAS 39 Financial 

Instruments: Recognition and Measurement  and supersedes the previously published 
versions of PFRS 9 that introduced new classifications and measurement 
requirements (in 2009 and 2010) and a new hedge accounting model (in 2013). 
PFRS 9 includes revised guidance on the classification and measurement of financial 
assets, including a new expected credit loss model for calculating impairment, 
guidance on own credit risk on financial liabilities measured at fair value and 
supplements the new general hedge accounting requirements published in 2013. 
PFRS 9 incorporates new hedge accounting requirements that represent a major 
overhaul of hedge accounting and introduces significant improvements by aligning 
the accounting more closely with risk management. 
 
The new standard is to be applied retrospectively for annual periods beginning on or 
after January 1, 2018, with early adoption permitted. 
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Financial Instruments  
Non-derivative Financial Instruments 
Non-derivative financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents, receivables, 
loan receivable, due from related parties, deposits (included under other noncurrent 
assets), accounts payable and accrued expenses, due to related parties, refundable 
deposits, and other current liabilities except for output VAT payable and withholding 
taxes payable. 
 
The Company recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability in the statements of 
financial position when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 
In the case of a regular way purchase or sale of financial assets, recognition and 
derecognition, as applicable, is done using settlement date accounting. 
 
Financial instruments are recognized initially at fair value, which is the fair value of the 
consideration given (in case of an asset) or received (in case of a liability). The fair value 
of the consideration given or received is determined by reference to the transaction price 
or other market prices. If such market prices are not reliably determinable, the fair value 
of the consideration is estimated as the sum of all future cash payments or receipts, 
discounted using the prevailing market rate of interest for similar instruments with 
similar maturities. The initial measurement of financial instruments, except for those 
designated at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), includes transaction cost. 
 
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Company classifies its financial assets in the 
following categories: held-to-maturity (HTM) investments, available-for-sale (AFS) 
financial assets, financial assets at FVPL, and loans and receivables; while the Company 
classifies its financial liabilities in the following categories: financial liabilities at FVPL 
and other financial liabilities. The classification depends on the purpose for which the 
investments are acquired and whether they are quoted in an active market. Management 
determines the classification of the Company’s financial assets and financial liabilities at 
initial recognition and, where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates such designation at 
every reporting date.  
 
The Company has no financial assets at HTM investments, AFS financial assets, 
financial assets at FVPL and financial liabilities at FVPL. 
 
The measurement of non-derivative financial instruments subsequent to initial 
recognition is described below: 
 
Loans and Receivables. Loans and receivables are nonderivative financial assets with 
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. They are not 
entered into with the intention of immediate or short-term resale and are not designated 
as AFS financial assets or financial asset at FVPL. Loans and receivables are carried at 
cost or amortized cost, less any allowance for impairment losses. Amortization is 
determined using the effective interest rate method. Gains and losses are recognized in 
profit or loss when the loans and receivables are derecognized or impaired, as well as 
through amortization process. 
 
Included in this category are the Company’s cash and cash equivalents, receivables, loan 
receivable, due from related parties and deposits. 
 
Cash includes cash on hand and in banks.  Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid 
investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with original 
maturities of three months or less from dates of acquisition and are subject to an 
insignificant risk of changes in value. 
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Other Financial Liabilities. This category pertains to nonderivative financial liabilities 
that are not held for trading or not designated at FVPL at the inception of the liability. 
They are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs. Subsequently, these are 
measured at amortized cost, taking into account the impact of applying the effective 
interest rate method of amortization (or accretion) for any related premium, discount and 
any directly attributable transaction costs. 
 
Included in this category are the Company’s accounts payable and accrued expenses, due 
to related parties, refundable deposits, and other current liabilities except for output VAT 
payable and withholding taxes payable.  
 
Offsetting Financial Assets and Liabilities 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the 
statements of financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right 
to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to 
realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. This is not generally the case 
with master netting agreements, and the related assets and liabilities are presented gross 
in the statements of financial position. 
 
Derecognition of Financial Instruments 
Financial Assets. A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or a 
part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognized when: 
 
� the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; 
 
� the Company retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed 

an obligation to pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a  
“pass-through” arrangement; or 

 
� the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either: 

(a) has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset; or (b) has 
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but 
has transferred control of the asset. 

 
When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has 
entered into a ‘pass-through’ arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained 
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the 
asset is recognized to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement in the asset. 
Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is 
measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum 
amount of consideration that the Company could be required to pay. 
 
Financial Liabilities. A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the 
liability is discharged or cancelled or has expired. 
 
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on 
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially 
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original 
liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective 
carrying amounts is recognized in profit or loss. 
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Determination of Fair Values 
A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the 
determination of fair value, for both financial and nonfinancial assets and liabilities. Fair 
values have been determined for measurement and/or disclosure purposes, when 
necessary, based on the market values, being the estimated amount for which assets could 
be exchanged on the date of the valuation between a willing buyer and a willing seller in 
an arm’s length transaction after proper marketing wherein the parties had each acted 
knowledgeably, prudently and without compulsion. When applicable, further information 
about the assumptions made in determining fair values is disclosed in the notes specific 
to that asset or liability. 
 
The different levels of fair value of financial instruments carried at fair value, by 
valuation method have been defined as follows:  
 
� Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or 

liabilities; 
 
� Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable 

for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly  
(i.e., derived from prices); and 

 
� Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data 

(unobservable inputs). 
 
Inventories 
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined 
using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) principle, and includes expenditures incurred in 
acquiring the inventories and bringing them to their existing location and condition. Net 
realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the 
estimated costs of selling expenses.  Obsolete inventories are disposed of and related 
costs are recognized in profit or loss. 
 
Investment in an Associate 
An associate is an entity in which the Company has significant influence, but not control, 
over the financial and operating policies. Significant influence is presumed to exist when 
the Company holds between 20 and 50 percent of the voting power of another entity. 
 
Investment in an associate is accounted for under the equity method of accounting and is 
recognized initially at cost. The cost of the investment includes transaction costs. The 
carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognize the Company’s share of the profit 
or loss of the associate after the date of acquisition until such time the Company loses its 
significant influence.  The Company’s share of the profit or loss of the associate is 
recognized as “Equity in net income of an associate” in profit or loss. 
 
The Company discontinues applying the equity method when its investment in the 
investee company is reduced to zero.  Accordingly, additional losses are not recognized 
unless the Company has guaranteed certain obligations of the investee company.  When 
the investee company subsequently reports net income, the Company will resume 
applying the equity method but only after its share in net income equals the share in net 
losses not recognized during the period the equity method was suspended. 
 
Property and Equipment 
Property and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation, amortization 
and impairment losses, if any. 
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Initially, an item of property and equipment is measured at its cost, which comprises its 
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to working 
condition.  Subsequent expenditures are added to the carrying amount of the asset when it 
is probable that future economic benefits, in excess of the originally assessed standard of 
performance, will flow to the Company.  The costs of day-to-day servicing an asset are 
recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.  
 
Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives 
of property and equipment. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the estimated 
useful lives or the term of the lease, whichever is shorter. 
 
The estimated useful lives are as follows: 
 

 Number of Years 

Building and building improvements 46 - 50 
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5 - 10 
Transportation equipment 5 
Leasehold improvements 5 or term of the lease 

whichever is shorter 
 
Estimated useful lives and depreciation and amortization methods are reviewed at each 
reporting date to ensure that they are consistent with the expected pattern of economic 
benefits from these assets. 
 
When an asset is disposed of, or is permanently withdrawn from use and no future 
economic benefits are expected from its disposal, the cost and accumulated depreciation, 
amortization and impairment losses, if any, are removed from the accounts and any 
resulting gain or loss arising from the retirement or disposal is recognized in profit or 
loss. 
 
Impairment of Assets  
Financial Assets 
Financial assets are reviewed for impairment at each reporting date. 
 
Assets Carried at Amortized Cost.  If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss 
on receivable carried at amortized cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is 
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of 
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) 
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective 
interest rate computed at initial recognition).  The carrying amount of the asset shall be 
reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognized 
in profit or loss.  Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount 
based on the original effective interest rate of the asset.  Receivables together with the 
associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery 
and all collateral, if any, has been realized or has been transferred to the Company.  If in 
a subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment loss increases or decreases 
because of an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously 
recognized impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account.  
If a future write-off is later recovered, the recovery is recognized in profit or loss.  Any 
subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss, to the extent that 
the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its amortized cost at the reversal date. 
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The Company first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually 
for financial assets that are individually significant, and individually or collectively for 
financial assets that are not individually significant.  If it is determined that no objective 
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether 
significant or not, the asset is included in a group of financial assets with similar credit 
risk characteristics and that group of financial assets is collectively assessed for 
impairment.  Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an 
impairment loss is or continues to be recognized are not included in the collective 
assessment of impairment.  For the purpose of specific evaluation of impairment, the 
Company assesses whether financial assets are impaired through assessment of 
collectability of financial assets considering the debtor’s capacity to pay, history of 
payment, and the availability of other financial support.  For the purpose of collective 
evaluation of impairment, if necessary, financial assets are grouped on the basis of such 
credit risk characteristics such as debtor type, payment history, past-due status and terms. 
 
Assets Carried at Cost.  If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss is incurred 
on an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried at fair value because its fair value 
cannot be reliably measured, the amount of the impairment loss is measured as the 
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future 
cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. 
 
Nonfinancial Assets 
The carrying amounts of the Company’s nonfinancial assets are reviewed at each 
reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such 
indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. 
 
The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit (CGU) is the greater of its 
value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal. Value in use is the present value of 
the future cash flows expected to be derived from an asset or CGU, while fair value less 
costs of disposal is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset or CGU in an arm’s 
length transaction between knowledgeable, willing parties, less the costs of disposal. In 
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present 
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time 
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of impairment testing, 
assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of 
assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the 
cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets or CGUs. An impairment loss is 
recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its estimated 
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss. 
 
Impairment losses recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any 
indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed 
if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An 
impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not 
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or 
amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized. 
 
Capital Stock 
Capital stock are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue 
of common shares and share options are recognized as a deduction from equity, net of 
any tax effects. 
 
Additional paid-in capital includes any premiums received on the initial issuance of 
capital stock.  Any transaction costs associated with the issuance of shares are deducted 
from additional paid-in capital, net of any related income tax benefit. 
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Treasury Stock 
When share capital recognized as equity is repurchased, the amount of the consideration 
paid, which includes directly attributable costs, net of any tax effects, is recognized as a 
deduction from equity. Repurchased shares are classified as treasury shares and are 
presented in the reserve for own shares. When treasury shares are sold or reissued 
subsequently, the amount received is recognized as an increase in equity, and the 
resulting surplus or deficit on the transaction is presented in additional paid-in capital. 
 
Retained Earnings 
The amount included in retained earnings includes earnings attributable to the 
Company’s equity holders and reduced by dividends, if any, on capital stock.  Dividends 
on capital stock are recognized as a liability and deducted from equity when they are 
declared by the Company’s stockholders. Dividends for the year that are approved after 
the financial reporting date are dealt with as an event after the financial reporting date. 
 
Retained earnings may also include prior year adjustments and the effect of changes in 
accounting policies as may be required by the standards’ transitional provisions. 
 
Revenue and Expense Recognition 
Revenue is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the 
Company and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably. Revenue is measured at 
the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of returns, trade discounts 
and volume rebates. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before 
revenue is recognized: 
 
Room Revenue: Revenue is recognized upon actual room occupancy. 
 
Food and Beverage: Revenue is recognized upon delivery of order.  
 
Other Operating Departments: Revenue is recognized upon rendering of service. 
 
Other Income: Rent income from operating lease is recognized on a straight-line basis 
over the lease term.  
 
Interest income which is presented net of tax, is recognized when earned. 
 
Costs and expenses are recognized when incurred. 
 
Foreign Currency Transactions 
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to Philippine peso based on the 
prevailing exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities 
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated using the exchange rates prevailing at 
the reporting date.  The resulting foreign exchange gains or losses are recognized in 
profit or loss. 
 
Operating Segments 
A segment is a distinguishable component of the Company that is engaged either in 
providing related products or services (business segment), or providing products or 
services within a particular economic environment (geographical segment), which is 
subject to risks and rewards that are different from those other segments.  
 
The Company determines and presents operating segments based on the information that 
is internally provided to the Chief Operating Officer, who is the Company’s chief 
operating decision maker. The Company assessed that its hotel business represents one 
segment.  
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Operating Leases - Company as Lessee 
The Company leases the land it occupies from a related party under a long-term lease 
agreement. Management has determined that all significant risks and rewards of this 
property remain with the lessor. Accordingly, such lease is accounted for as operating 
lease. 
 
Operating Leases - Company as Lessor 
Leases where the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits of 
ownership of the assets are classified as operating leases. Rent income from operating 
leases is recognized as income on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Initial direct 
costs incurred in negotiating an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the 
leased asset and recognized as an expense over the lease term on the same basis as rent 
income. Contingent rents are recognized as income in the period in which they are 
earned. 
 
Taxes 
Income tax expense is composed of current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is 
recognized in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly 
in equity or in other comprehensive income, in which case it is recognized in equity or 
other comprehensive income. 
 
Current Tax 
Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the 
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the tax authority. The tax rates and tax 
laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted as at 
reporting date. 
 
Deferred Tax 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized in respect of temporary differences 
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and 
the amounts used for taxation purposes and the carryforward tax benefits of unused net 
operating loss carryover (NOLCO) and unused tax credits from excess minimum 
corporate income tax (MCIT) over the regular corporate income tax (RCIT). Deferred tax 
is not recognized for temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets or 
liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that affects neither 
accounting nor taxable profit or loss; temporary differences related to investments in 
subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities to the extent that it is probable that they will 
not reverse in the foreseeable future; and taxable temporary differences arising on the 
initial recognition of goodwill. 
 
A deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable 
profits will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and the 
carryforward tax benefits of unused NOLCO and unused tax credits from excess MCIT 
can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to 
the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized. 
Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognized 
to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable income will allow the 
deferred tax assets to be recognized. 
 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply 
to the year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax 
laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. 
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset 
current tax liabilities and assets, and the deferred taxes relate to the same tax authority on 
the same taxable entity. 
 
Value-added Tax (VAT). Revenue, expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount 
of VAT, except: 
 
� where the VAT incurred on a purchase of assets or services are not recoverable from 

the tax authority, in which case the VAT is recognized as part of the cost of 
acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item as applicable; and 

 
� receivables and payables that are stated with amount of VAT included.  
 
The input and output VAT are presented at gross and included under prepaid expenses 
and other current assets and other current liabilities in the statements of financial 
position. 
 
Earnings per Share 
The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) for its common shares. 
Basic EPS is computed by dividing net income by the weighted average number of 
common shares outstanding during the year, after giving retroactive effect to any stock 
dividends declared during the year, if any.  Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the 
net income for the effects of all dilutive potential shares. 
 
Related Parties 
Parties are considered related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control 
the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial 
and operating decisions.  Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject to 
common control or significant influence.  Related parties may be individuals or corporate 
entities. 
 
Employee Benefits 
Retirement Costs 
The Company’s net obligation in respect of the defined benefit plan is calculated by 
estimating the amount of the future benefit that employees have earned in the current and 
prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets. 
 
The calculation of defined benefit obligations is performed on a periodic basis by a 
qualified actuary appointed by the Company using the projected unit credit method.  
When the calculation results in a potential asset for the Company, the recognized asset is 
limited to the present value of economic benefits available in the form of any future 
refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan.  To calculate the 
present value of economic benefits, consideration is given to any applicable minimum 
funding requirements. 
 
Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and 
losses, the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling  
(if any, excluding interest), are recognized immediately in other comprehensive income. 
The Company determines the net interest expense (income) on the net defined benefit 
liability (asset) for the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined 
benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then net defined benefit 
liability (asset), taking into account any changes in the net defined liability (asset) during 
the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments.  Net interest expense and 
other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognized in profit or loss. 
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When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change 
in benefit that relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognized 
immediately in profit or loss.  The Company recognizes gains and losses on the 
settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs. 
 
Short-term Employee Benefits 
Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided.  A liability 
is recognized for the amount expected to be paid if the Company has a present legal or 
constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the 
employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably. 
 
Provisions 
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive 
obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources 
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable 
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.  If the effect of the time value of 
money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash 
flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money 
and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. Where discounting is used, the 
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as an interest expense. 
 
Contingencies 
Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements but are disclosed in 
the notes to the financial statements unless the possibility of an outflow of resources 
embodying economic benefits is remote. Contingent assets are not recognized in the 
financial statements but are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements when an 
inflow of economic benefits is probable. 
 
Events After the Reporting Date 
Any event after the reporting date that provide additional information about the 
Company’s financial position at the reporting date (adjusting event) is recognized in the 
financial statements when material.  Any event after the reporting date that is not an 
adjusting event is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements when material. 
 
 

4. Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
This account consists of: 
 
 Note 2015 2014 

Cash on hand and in banks  P45,741,556 P69,719,296 
Short-term investments  193,441,593 167,358,767 

  26 P239,183,149 P237,078,063 

 
Cash in banks earns annual interest at the prevailing bank deposit rates.  Short-term 
investments consist mainly of time deposits which earn annual interest ranging from 
0.15% to 0.5% in 2015, 2014 and 2013. Interest income earned amounted to P575,745, 
P669,592 and P2,450,401 for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, 
respectively. 
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5. Receivables  
 
This account consists of: 
 
 Note 2015 2014 

Trade:    
Charge customers 26 P47,157,969 P36,448,610 
Receivables from Philippine Amusement 

and Gaming Corporation (PAGCOR)  16,162,682 232,582,149 
Others  5,588,310 9,788,887 

  68,908,961 278,819,646 
Utility charges  17,482,878 17,405,243 
Deposit to suppliers  16,801,170 4,430,028 
Interest  14 11,075,692 11,012,498 
Others 14 5,198,192 5,755,470 

  119,466,893 317,422,885 
Less allowance for impairment losses  on 

trade receivables 26 13,406,522 13,312,179 

 26 P106,060,371 P304,110,706 

 
Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on a 15 to 30 day credit 
term. 
 
Receivables from PAGCOR include billings for output value added tax (VAT) 
outstanding as at December 31, 2014. The corresponding output VAT payable from the 
billings to PAGCOR is likewise not remitted to the BIR due to the pending case, prior to 
the final decision of the Supreme Court (SC) ordered in 2015, as discussed below (see 
Note 13). 
 
Under Revenue Regulation 16-2005 “Consolidated Value Added Tax Law” which took 
effect on November 1, 2005, it was legislated that PAGCOR is subject to the VAT of 
12%.  Management believes that this law has a prospective application and therefore the 
previously recorded VAT on transactions with PAGCOR (prior to November 1, 2005) 
would have to be reversed when the position from the BIR is secured. 
 
In the middle of 2008, the Company received from the BIR a Final Decision on Disputed 
Assessment finding the Company liable for deficiency VAT with respect to the years 
1996 to 2002 in total amount of P228.94 million, inclusive of penalty and interest from 
January 2003 to December 2006.  The Company subsequently filed a petition for review 
with the Court of Tax Appeal (“CTA”) to contest such Final Decision on Disputed 
Assessment.   
 
The BIR further issued a Warrant of Distraint and/or Levy and Warrant of Garnishment 
against the Company and its assets. On September 12, 2008, the Company filed a surety 
bond with the CTA, and the CTA issued a Temporary Restraining Order enjoining the 
BIR from further efforts at collection of taxes, particularly the implementation of the 
Warrant of Distraint and/or Levy and the Warrant of Garnishment.  
 
In 2009, the Company moved to have a preliminary hearing conducted to first resolve the 
legal issue of whether or not the services rendered by the Company to PAGCOR is 
subject to VAT at 10% rate. The CTA granted the motion and hearings were 
subsequently conducted.  On February 18, 2011, the CTA ruled in favor of the Company 
and cancelled the VAT deficiency assessment in toto.  
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As mentioned in the CTA Resolution, in line with the decision of the SC in Philippine 
Amusement and Gaming Corporation (PAGCOR) vs. The BIR, et al., the CTA, in its 
decision dated February 18, 2011, cancelled the BIR’s assessment against the Company 
for deficiency VAT in the amount of P228.94 million for taxable years 1996 to 2002.  In 
its resolution dated May 17, 2011, the CTA denied the Commissioner of the BIR’s 
Motion for Reconsideration of the CTA’s decision rendered on February 18, 2011. 
According to the CTA, considering that the assessment against the Company for 
deficiency VAT was cancelled, the CTA deemed it proper that the surety bond posted by 
the Company be discharged.  The BIR shortly filed an appeal with the CTA En Banc. 
 
On September 1, 2011, the CTA En Banc resolved to give course to BIR’s appeal. The 
Company filed its Memorandum in October 2011. On July 27, 2012, the CTA En Banc 
resolved that consistent with the pronouncement of the SC in the cases of BIR vs. Acesite 
Hotel Corporation and PAGCOR vs. BIR, that services rendered to PAGCOR are exempt 
from VAT, BIR’s petition has no leg to stand on and must necessarily fall.  The BIR filed 
a Motion for Reconsideration. 
 
On October 8, 2012, the CTA En Banc resolved that BIR’s Motion for Reconsideration is 
denied and the earlier decision of the CTA promulgated on May 17, 2011 is affirmed. On 
December 5, 2012, the BIR filed with the SC a Petition for Review.  
 
On May 6, 2013, the Company filed its Comment/Opposition to the Petition for Review 
and is awaiting feedback from the SC. On October 17, 2013, the Company received a 
Notice from the SC directing the BIR to file a reply within 10 days from receipt of 
Notice.  
 
On October 8, 2014, the SC declared the BIR Manifestation and Motion dated April 11, 
2014 as unsatisfactory compliance with the Resolution dated January 28, 2013. The SC 
directed the BIR to comply with the Resolution by submitting within five days from 
notice the required documents. 
 
On December 16, 2014, the Company filed a Manifestation and Motion to Dismiss the 
Petition by the BIR for non-compliance with the jurisdictional requirements.  
 
On June 9, 2015, the Company received a Notice from the Court of the First Division of 
the SC stating that on February 11, 2015, the First Division of the SC resolved to note the 
Company’s Manifestation and grant the Company’s Motion to Dismiss the 
Commissioner of Internal Revenue’s (“CIR”) Petition for Review on Certiorari 
(“Petition”) of the Tax Case for failure of the CIR to comply with the resolutions issued 
by the SC, which required the CIR to submit a verified statement of material date and the 
duplicate original or certified true copies of the assailed CTA decision and resolution.  
The Notice also stated that the Tax Case is considered closed and terminated.  
 
On June 24, 2015, the BIR filed a Motion for Reconsideration with the SC even though 
the SC has previously ruled that the case is considered closed and terminated.  
 
On November 13, 2015, the Company received a Notice from the SC denying the Motion 
for Reconsideration of the BIR and ruled it with finality in favor of the Company. 
 
With the termination of the case, the Company reversed the VAT receivable from 
PAGCOR amounting to P216,419,467 and the related Output VAT payable amounting to 
P203,802,362. The difference of P12,617,105 between the amounts reversed was 
recognized as part of “Administrative Expenses” (see Note 17). 
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The Company’s exposure to credit risks and impairment losses related to trade 
receivables from charge customers are disclosed in Note 26. 
 
 

6. Inventories 
 
This account consists of: 
 
 Note 2015 2014 

Food  P4,798,446 P4,801,467 
General supplies  3,766,389 5,057,137 
Engineering supplies  2,421,115 2,673,754 
Beverage and tobacco  1,031,622 960,322 
Others  323,220 500,549 

  15 P12,340,792 P13,993,229 

 
There was no write down of inventories to NRV in 2015 and 2014. 
ss 
 

7. Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets 
 
This account consists of: 
 
 2015 2014 

Input value-added tax P5,579,291 P6,726,359 
Prepaid expenses 5,512,517 4,703,774 
Prepaid income tax 2,150,645 -     
Others 832,280 800,505 

  P14,074,733 P12,230,638 

 
Input value-added tax is current and can be applied against output vat.  
 
Prepaid expenses consist of insurance premiums, dues and subscriptions fees. 
 
 

8. Investment in an Associate 
 
Investment in an associate pertains to the 40% ownership in Harbour Land Corporation 
(HLC), a Philippine corporation engaged in the real estate business (see Note 14). 
 
This account consists of: 
 
 2015 2014 

Acquisition cost P48,200,000 P48,200,000 

Accumulated share in net earnings:   
Balance at beginning of year 2,041,237 267,138 
Equity in net income of associate during the year 2,372,464 1,774,099 

Balance at end of year 4,413,701 2,041,237 

 P52,613,701 P50,241,237 
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A summary of the financial information of HLC follows: 
 

 2015 2014 

Current assets P33,537,899 P29,132,252 
Noncurrent asset 121,900,300 121,830,382 
Current liabilities (583,813) (1,377,625) 
Noncurrent liability (78,000,000) (78,011,590) 

Net liabilities (100%) (P76,854,386) (P71,573,419) 

Company’s share of net liabilities (40%) P30,741,754 P28,629,368 

Revenue P17,797,608 P17,797,608 

Net income (loss)/total comprehensive income 
(loss) (100%) P5,931,160 P4,435,249 

Company’s share in net income (loss)/total 
comprehensive income (loss) (40%) P2,372,464 P1,774,099 

 
 

9. Loan Receivable 
 
This pertains to the loan granted to Rogo Realty Corporation (RRC), a company under 
common control, which is collateralized by RRC’s investment in shares of stock of HLC 
with a carrying value of P72.3 million as at December 31, 2015 and 2014 and is 
collectible on demand with interest rate of 5% per annum (see Note 14). 
 
Interest income earned in 2015, 2014 and 2013 amounted to P775,000 for each year. 
 
 

10. Property and Equipment 
 
The movements and balances in this account are as follows: 
 

 

Building and 
Building 

Improvements 

Furniture 
Fixtures and 

Equipment 
Transportation 

Equipment 
Leasehold 

Improvements Total 

Cost      
Balance, January 1, 2014 P996,622,622 P373,090,252 P4,158,198 P385,157 P1,374,256,229 
Additions 12,151,980 3,734,553 -     -     15,886,533 

Balance, December 31, 2014 1,008,774,602 376,824,805 4,158,198 385,157 1,390,142,762 
Additions 6,017,627 967,674 -     -     6,985,301 
Disposals (1,669,735) (7,911,963) -     -     (9,581,698) 
Reclassification 562,500 (562,500) -     -     -      

Balance, December 31, 2015 1,013,684,994 369,318,016 4,158,198 385,157 1,387,546,365 

Accumulated Depreciation 
and Amortization      

Balance, January 1, 2014 410,261,464 311,811,086 4,158,198 385,157 726,615,905 
Depreciation and amortization 

during the year 24,237,529 14,626,668 -     -     38,864,197 

Balance, December 31, 2014 434,498,993 326,437,754 4,158,198 385,157 765,480,102 
Depreciation and amortization 

during the year 25,906,986 13,651,885 -     -     39,558,871 
Disposals (502,988) (7,911,963) -     -     (8,414,951) 
Reclassification 27,188 (27,188) -     -     -     

Balance, December 31, 2015 459,930,179 332,150,488 4,158,198 385,157 796,624,022 

Carrying Amount      

December 31, 2014 P574,275,609 P50,387,051 P   -     P   -     P624,662,660 

December 31, 2015 P553,754,815 P37,167,528 P   -     P   -     P590,922,343 
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In 2015, the Company disposed bulding equipment resulting to loss on disposal 
amounting to P1,166,747. 
 
No impairment loss was recognized for the Company’s property and equipment in 2015, 
2014 and 2013. 
 
 

11. Other Noncurrent Assets 
 
This account consists of: 
 

 Note 2015 2014 

Lease deposit 14, 20, 26 P78,000,000 P78,000,000 
Miscellaneous investments and deposits  8,781,609 5,085,791 
Others  1,010,000 1,010,000 

   P87,791,609 P84,095,791 

 
Miscellaneous investments and deposits consist of utility and rent deposit. 
 
 

12. Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses 
 
This account consists of: 
 
 Note 2015 2014 

Trade  P37,016,672 P42,252,080 
Accrued payroll  23,904,260 19,420,513 
Accrued other liabilities  16,556,306 10,897,798 
Accrued utilities  4,916,912 4,533,109 
Others  705,166 815,762 

 26 P83,099,316 P77,919,262 

 
The Company’s exposure to liquidity risk related to trade and other payables is discussed 
in Note 26. 
 
In 2014, the Company reversed its accrual of payable to CDL Hotel (Phils.) Corporation 
(CDL), a related party, until March 2011 due to the latter’s liquidation amounting to 
P14,767,900. The accrual pertains to the management and incentive fees arising from 
management contract with CDL.  
 
Trade payables have normal terms of 30 to 45 days. 
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13. Other Current Liabilities 
 
This account consists of: 
 
 Note 2015 2014 

Deposits for utilities  P4,789,028 P4,983,868 
Payable to government agencies  4,618,637 5,820,142 
Payable to employees 26 3,616,015 9,949,840 
Output VAT payable 5 3,331,455 206,953,990 
Rewards redemption payable  1,018,117 1,181,381 
Others 26 454,688 1,872,492 

  P17,827,940 P230,761,713 

 
Output VAT payable includes output tax charged to PAGCOR amounting to 
P203,802,362 as at December 31, 2014 which was closed against the related VAT 
receivable in 2015 as discussed in Note 5. 
 
 

14. Related Party Transactions 
 
In the normal course of business, the Company has transactions with its related parties. 
These transactions and account balances as at December 31 follow: 
 

            Outstanding Balance   

Category/ 
Transaction Year Note 

Amount  
of the 

Transaction 

Due from 
Related 
Parties 

Due to 
Related 
Parties Terms Conditions 

Associate        
� Lease deposit 2015 20 P   -     P78,000,000 P   -     Required lease 

deposit on the 
leased land 

Collectible upon 
termination of  
the contract 

 2014   -     78,000,000 -     Required lease 
deposit on the 
leased land 

Collectible upon 
termination of  
the contract 

 2013  -     78,000,000 -     Required lease 
deposit on the 
leased land 

Collectible upon 
termination of  
the contract 

� Interest income 2015 14b, 20 3,900,000 -     -       
 2014  3,900,000 -     -       
 2013  3,900,000 6,125,290 -     5% per annum 

of the lease 
deposit 

Unsecured 

� Advances 2015 14a 2,221 -     -       
 2014  24,550 350 -     Due and 

demandable; 
non interest 
bearing 

Unsecured; no 
impairment 

 2013  135,037 135,037 -     Due and 
demandable; 
non interest 
bearing 

Unsecured; no 
impairment 

� Rent expense 2015 17, 20 17,797,608 -     -       
 2014  17,797,608 -     -       
 2013  10,678,560 -     -       
� Rent income 2015 14e, 20 180,000 -     -       
 2014  90,000 96,300 -     Due and 

demandable; 
non interest 
bearing 

Unsecured 

Forward 
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            Outstanding Balance   

Category/ 
Transaction Year Note 

Amount  
of the 

Transaction 

Due from 
Related 
Parties 

Due to 
Related 
Parties Terms Conditions 

Under Common 
Control        

� Management and 
incentive fees 

2015 14d, 17 P20,762,185 P   -     P6,236,662 Due and 
demandable; 
non interest 
bearing 

Unsecured 

 2014  20,816,244 -     4,684,895 Due and 
demandable; 
non interest 
bearing 

Unsecured 

 2013  25,020,591 -     1,424,181 Due and 
demandable; 
non interest 
bearing 

Unsecured 

� Advances 2015 14a 8,420,793 50 561,528 Due and 
demandable; 
non interest 
bearing 

Unsecured; no 
impairment 

 2014  1,233,015 -     1,405,348 Due and 
demandable; 
non interest 
bearing 

Unsecured; no 
impairment 

 2013  2,276,171 1,750,063 691,240 Due and 
demandable; 
non interest 
bearing 

Unsecured; no 
impairment 

� Loan 2015 9, 14c -     15,500,000 -     Due and 
demandable; 
interest 
bearing 

Unsecured; no 
impairment 

 2014  -     15,500,000 -     Due and 
demandable; 
interest 
bearing 

Unsecured; no 
impairment 

 2013  -     15,500,000 -     Due and 
demandable; 
interest 
bearing 

Unsecured; no 
impairment 

� Interest income 2015 14c 775,000 11,000,000 -     5% per annum 
of the loan 
receivable 

Unsecured 

 2014  775,000 11,000,000 -     5% per annum 
of the loan 
receivable 

Unsecured 

 2013  775,000 11,386,249 -     5% per annum 
of the loan 
receivable 

Unsecured 

� Rent income 2015 14e 420,000 -     -       
 2014  200,000 160,500 -     Due and 

demandable; 
non interest 
bearing 

Unsecured 

Key Management 
Personnel of the 
Entity        

� Short term  2015 14f 17,699,951 -     -       
employee  2014  19,301,720 -     -       
benefits 2013  19,293,747 -     -       

TOTAL 2015   P104,500,050 P6,798,190   

TOTAL 2014   P104,757,150 P6,090,243   

TOTAL 2013   P112,896,639 P2,115,421   

 
Due from related parties is included in the following accounts: 
 
 Note 2015 2014 

Receivables - net 5 P11,000,000 P11,256,800 
Loan receivable 9 15,500,000 15,500,000 
Due from related parties  50 350 
Other noncurrent assets 11, 20 78,000,000 78,000,0000 

  P104,500,050 P104,757,150 
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a. In the normal course of business, the Company grants/obtains advances to/from 
related parties for working capital purposes. These advances are non-interest bearing, 
unsecured and receivable/payable on demand. 

 
b. The interest receivable from HLC, an associate, represents the uncollected interest on 

the lease deposit of the Company to HLC at 5% a year (see Note 20). The related 
interest income amounted to P3.9 million annually for the three-year period ended 
December 31, 2015. 

 
c. The interest receivable from RRC, an entity under common control, represents the 

uncollected interest on the loan granted by the Company to RRC at 5% a year  
(see Note 9).  The related interest income amounted to P0.78 million annually for the 
three-year period ended December 31, 2015. 

 
d. The Company has a Management Agreement with Elite Hotel Management Services 

Pte. Ltd - Philippine Branch (Elite), an entity under control, under which the latter 
provides management, technical and administrative services. In return, the Company 
pays monthly basic management and incentive fees based on a percentage of the 
hotel’s revenue (2%) and gross operating profit (7%), respectively, starting  
April 2011. 

 
e. The rent income from HLC, RRC and Elite represents the sub-lease portion of an 

office space consisting of 30 square meters, 25 square meters and 65 square meters, 
respectively, located at the Hotel. The lease covers a period of 2.5 years until 
December 31, 2016, renewable upon written agreement of both parties. 

 
f. Transactions with Key Management Personnel 

The total remuneration of key management personnel in the form of short-term 
employee benefits is shown below: 
 
 2015 2014 2013 

Directors of hotel operations P2,291,685 P2,732,760 P3,671,418 
Executive officers 15,408,266 16,568,960 15,622,329 

  P17,699,951 P19,301,720 P19,293,747 

 
The Company does not provide post-employment and equity-based compensation 
benefits to its Board of Directors and Expatriates. 
 
 

15. Cost of Sales and Services 
 
This account consists of: 
 
 Note 2015 2014 2013 

Inventories at beginning 
of year 6 P13,993,229 P13,582,447 P14,560,701 

Purchases  52,854,755 56,696,788 58,771,715 

Available for sale and use  66,847,984 70,279,235 73,332,416 
Inventories at end of year 6 (12,340,792) (13,993,229) (13,582,447) 

  P54,507,192 P56,286,006 P59,749,969 
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16. Selling Expenses 
 
This account consists of: 
 
 Note 2015 2014 2013 

Salaries, wages and 
employee benefits: 21    
Food and beverage  P31,099,865 P32,252,688 P34,125,259 
Rooms  29,815,663 30,393,903 29,707,598 
Other operating 

departments  1,265,462 1,285,659 1,272,489 

  62,180,990 63,932,250 65,105,346 
Property operation, 

maintenance, energy 
and conservation  80,483,496 98,794,538 103,083,894 

Guest supplies  9,779,840 9,602,307 9,984,630 
Commission  8,049,420 8,423,737 6,231,033 
Transport charges  6,302,642 6,490,719 6,931,548 
Laundry and dry cleaning  5,331,439 5,097,076 5,186,222 
Online selling and 

marketing tools  3,442,052 3,346,056 635,118 
Printing and stationery  1,929,781 2,105,581 2,358,083 
Kitchen fuel  1,716,756 2,652,540 2,841,429 
Housekeeping expense - 

night cleaning  1,436,580 1,539,193 1,344,239 
Operating supplies  1,263,205 1,028,138 1,186,414 
Music and entertainment  1,086,648 1,078,670 1,003,012 
Cleaning supplies  643,835 644,809 775,512 
Permits and licenses  513,452 606,050 350,633 
Miscellaneous  8,333,318 6,287,010 7,516,897 

  P192,493,454 P211,628,674 P214,534,010 
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17. Administrative Expenses 
 
This account consists of: 
 
 Note 2015 2014 2013 

Hotel overhead 
departments     

Salaries, wages and 
employee benefits: 21    
Administrative and 

general  P33,525,853 P35,637,618 P35,176,442 
Engineering  9,711,386 12,792,037 8,727,296 
Sales and marketing  7,885,728 7,972,648 7,857,115 
Human resources  2,234,627 1,423,807 2,743,667 

  53,357,594 57,826,110 54,504,520 
Management and 

incentive fees 14 20,762,185 20,816,244 25,020,591 
Credit card commission  5,632,812 6,265,220 5,918,815 
Dues and subscription  4,644,950 3,893,774 3,071,583 
Data processing  2,254,199 2,166,924 2,438,617 
Telecommunications  1,036,083 1,174,547 2,070,823 
Advertising  1,044,046 790,253 1,240,189 
Entertainment  751,766 905,428 867,063 
Awards and social 

activities  572,725 702,428 686,714 
Miscellaneous  3,026,379 2,861,583 4,162,326 

  93,082,739 97,402,511 99,981,241 

Corporate office     
Depreciation and 

amortization 10 39,558,871 38,864,197 36,293,759 
Leased land rental 14, 20 17,797,608 17,797,608 10,678,560 
Professional fees  14,357,245 6,977,782 7,446,688 
Write-off of receivables 5, 13 12,617,105 -     -     
Corporate office payroll 

and related expense  11,471,410 7,409,803 3,584,995 
Property tax  9,265,681 9,265,761 9,265,681 
Insurance  8,976,761 9,071,572 12,620,164 
Office supplies  1,023,143 972,205 1,033,836 
Taxes and licenses  543,516 12,227,976 8,680,760 
Transportation and travel  520,706 704,986 131,533 
Directors’ 

fees/allowances  398,708 1,311,151 1,494,626 
Provision for impairment 

losses on receivables 26 94,343 13,156,558 27,260 
Utility charges  -     -     7,464,596 
Miscellaneous  2,641,564 1,973,529 824,609 

  119,266,661 119,733,128 99,547,067 

  P212,349,400 P217,135,639 P199,528,308 
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18. Earnings per Share 
 
Basic and diluted earnings per share are computed as follows: 
 
 2015 2014 2013 

Weighted average number of 
common shares:    
Balance at beginning of year P53,717,369 P54,702,219 P57,551,552 

Weighted average number of 
shares acquired during the year -     (539,141) (1,560,672) 

 P53,717,369 P54,163,078 P55,990,880 

 
 2015 2014 2013 

Net income for the year P5,772,079 P393,898 P85,576,676 
Divided by weighted average 

number of outstanding shares 53,717,369 54,163,078 55,990,880 

 P0.11 P0.01 P1.53 

 
There are no potential dilutive common shares in the years presented. 
 
 

19. Refundable Deposits 
 
This account consists of: 
 
 Note 2015 2014 

PAGCOR 20 P25,349,438 P25,349,438 
Others  5,396,673 30,770,381 

  30,746,111 56,119,819 
Less: Current portion  25,349,438 49,346,738 

  P5,396,673 P6,773,081 

 
The refundable deposit pertains to the deposit paid by the lessee to the Company as 
required in the lease agreement. 
 
In October 2014, the Company had a potential tenant on the space previously rented by 
PAGCOR. It paid the lease deposit amounting to P23.99 million upon signing the 
Memorandum of Agreement.  
 
In 2015, PAGCOR did not grant the potential tenant a license to operate a casino. The 
potential tenant refunded the lease deposit amounting to P19.53 million and the 
remaining balance of P4.46 million, inclusive 12% VAT, was forfeited by the Company 
and  was recognized as “Other income” in profit or loss.  
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20. Leases 
 
Company as Lessor 
The Company leases certain portions of the Hotel premises to third parties with options 
for extension/renewal upon mutual agreement of the parties. The leases include 
provisions for rental increment of 5% upon renewal of the contracts subject to 
renegotiations of both parties.  
 
The lease agreements with the third parties required the latter to give the Company lease 
deposits which amounted to a total of P30,746,111 and P56,119,819 as at December 31, 
2015 and 2014, respectively, and are shown as part of “Refundable deposits” in the 
statements of financial position. Rent income amounted to P2,847,052 and P2,209,159 in 
2015 and 2014, respectively, and is shown as “Others” under Revenue in the statements 
of profit or loss. 
 
On March 31, 2011, the Company and PAGCOR, agreed to amend and include 
additional spaces in the Contract of Lease. The amended lease contract is binding until 
July 10, 2013. 
 
On February 15, 2012, the BOD of PAGCOR has decided not to renew the contract of 
lease which ended on July 10, 2013. Refundable deposit from PAGCOR is not yet 
returned to the latter pending reconciliation of account between both parties. 
 
Company as Lessee 
The Company leases the land occupied by the Hotel from HLC, its associate, for a period 
of 25 years up to January 1, 2015. On August 1, 2004, the Company, as lessee, and HLC, 
as lessor, agreed to amend the Contract of Lease with Option to Purchase executed by the 
parties on November 12, 1991 covering the lease of the land. The amended contract 
provides for the following: 
 
a. Annual rental on the land of P10,678,560; 
 
b. Required lease deposit (shown as part of “Other noncurrent assets” in the statements 

of financial position) of P78 million; and 
 
c. Interest rate of 5% per annum on the lease deposit which the lessor is obligated to 

pay to the Company. 
 
On August 11, 2014, the Company and HLC agreed to amend the lease contract to 
increase the fee from P10,678,560 to P17,797,608 starting January 1, 2014 and to extend 
the lease contract from 2015 to 2040 for a period of another 25 years with no escalation 
of fee for the first 5 years but on the 6th year, HLC will propose a revision depending on 
market condition. 
 
The rent expense on the land amounted to P17.80 million, P17.80 million and P10.68 
million shown as part of leased rental under “Administrative expenses” account in 2015, 
2014 and 2013, respectively (see Note 17). 
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Future minimum rental obligations on the land are as follows: 
 
 2015 2014 2013 

Due within one year P17,797,608 P17,797,608 P10,678,560 
After one year but not more than 

five years 88,988,040 88,988,040 -     
More than 5 years 320,356,944 338,154,552 -     
  P427,142,592 P444,940,200 P10,678,560 

 
 

21. Retirement Cost 
 
The Company has an unfunded, noncontributory, defined benefit retirement plan 
covering substantially all of its employees, except for its Board of Directors and 
Expatriates. It provides a retirement benefit equal to eighty-six (86%) of monthly salary 
per year of services payable to an employee who retires at age of 60 with at least 5 years 
in service.  Annual cost is determined using the projected unit credit method.  The 
Company’s latest valuation date is December 31, 2015. 
  
The recognized liability representing the present value of the defined benefit obligation  
presented as “Accrued retirement benefits liability” in the Company’s statements of 
financial position amounted to P25,489,767 and P26,634,668 as at December 31, 2015 
and 2014, respectively. 
 
The movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows: 
 
 2015 2014 

Balance at January 1 P26,634,668 P21,914,777 

Included in Profit or Loss   
Current service cost 1,796,360 1,988,063 
Interest cost 1,358,368 964,250 

 3,154,728 2,952,313 

Included in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)   
Remeasurements loss (gain):   

Actuarial loss (gain) arising from:   
Financial assumptions 1,266,784 (1,144,185) 
Experience adjustment (5,166,107) 3,128,766 

 (3,899,323) 1,984,581 

Others   
Benefits paid (400,306) (217,003) 

Balance at December 31 P25,489,767 P26,634,668 

 
The amounts of retirement benefits cost which are included in “Salaries, wages and 
employee benefits” under operating expenses in the statements of profit or loss for the 
years ended December 31 are as follows: 
 
 2015 2014 2013 

Current service cost P1,796,360 P1,988,063 P1,442,564 
Interest cost 1,358,368 964,250 1,382,280 

Retirement benefits cost P3,154,728 P2,952,313 P2,824,844 
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The actuarial gains, before deferred income taxes, recognized under “Other 
comprehensive income” in the statements of comprehensive income and statements of 
changes in equity are as follows: 
 
 2015 2014 2013 

Cumulative actuarial gain at the 
beginning of the year P6,708,626 P8,693,207 P10,163,191 

Actuarial gain (loss) arising 
from:    
Financial assumptions (1,266,784) 1,144,185 (3,501,119) 
Experience adjustment 5,166,107 (3,128,766) 2,031,135 

Cumulative actuarial gain at the 
end of the year P10,607,949 P6,708,626 P8,693,207 

 
The net accumulated actuarial gains, net of deferred tax amounted to P7,425,564, 
P4,696,038 and P6,085,245 as at December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively, as 
presented in the statements of changes in equity. 
 
Principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date (expressed as weighted averages): 
 
 2015 2014 2013 

Discount rate 5% 5% 5% 
Future salary increases 3% 3% 3% 

 
Assumptions regarding future mortality have been based on published statistics and 
mortality rates of the 1985 Unisex Annuity table. 
 
Sensitivity Analysis 
Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial 
assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined benefit 
obligation by the amounts shown below: 
 
 Increase Decrease 

Discount rate (1% movement) (1,266,784) 1,366,605 
Future salary increase rate (1% movement) 1,311,605 (1,228,356) 

 
Although the analysis does not take into account the full distribution of cash flows 
expected under the plan, it does provide an approximation of the sensitivity of the 
assumption shown. 
 
The defined benefit plan exposes the Company to actuarial risks, such as longevity risk, 
interest rate risk, and market (investment) risk. 
 
The weighted-average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 12 years as at 
December 31, 2015 and 2014.  
 
The maturity analysis of the benefit payments is as follows: 
 

 2015 

 
Carrying 
Amount 

Contractual 
Cash Flows 

Less than 
5 Years 

5 Years but 
Less than 
10 Years 

More than 
10 Years 

Retirement benefits 
liability P25,489,767 P93,358,992 P6,899,779 P8,229,568 P78,229,645 
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The Company is not required to pre-fund the future defined benefits payable under the 
Retirement Fund before they become due.  For this reason, the amount and timing of 
contributions to the Retirement Fund are at the Company’s discretion.  However, in the 
event a benefit claim arises, the Company will be liable to pay its employees. 
 
 

22. Income Tax  
 
The components of the Company’s income tax expense are as follows: 
 
 2015 2014 2013 

Current tax expense P4,358,744 P9,802,073 P34,405,405 
Deferred tax expense (benefit) 2,269,530 (6,230,909) 3,798,738 

 P6,628,274 P3,571,164 P38,204,143 

 
The reconciliation of the income tax expense computed at statutory income tax rate to the 
income tax expense shown in profit or loss is as follows: 
 
 2015 2014 2013 

Income before income tax P12,400,353 P3,965,062 P123,780,819 

Income tax expense at statutory 
tax rate (30%) P3,720,106 P1,189,519 P37,134,246 

Additions to (reductions in) 
income tax resulting from the 
tax effects of:    
Income subjected to final tax (172,724) (200,878) (735,120) 
Equity in net income of  an 

associate (711,739) (532,230) (183,312) 
Non deductible expense  3,792,631 3,114,753 1,988,329 

 P6,628,274 P3,571,164 P38,204,143 

 
The components of the Company’s deferred tax assets (liabilities) are as follows: 
 

    December 31 

 
Net  

Balance at 
Recognized 

 in Profit Recognized  
Deferred  

Tax 
Deferred  

Tax 
2015 January 1 or Loss in OCI Net Balance Assets Liabilities 
Accrued retirement 

benefits liability P10,002,988 P826,327 P   -     P10,829,315 P10,829,315 P   -     
Allowance for 

impairment losses 
on receivables 3,993,654 28,303 -     4,021,957 4,021,957 -     

Unrealized foreign 
exchange loss (gain) 414,085 (3,124,160) -     (2,710,075) -     (2,710,075) 

Actuarial gain on 
defined benefit plan (2,012,588) -     (1,169,797) (3,182,385) -     (3,182,385) 

Net tax assets and 
liabilities P12,398,139 (P2,269,530) (P1,169,797) P8,958,812 P14,851,272 (P5,892,460) 
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    December 31 

 
Net  

Balance at 
Recognized 

 in Profit Recognized  
Deferred  

Tax 
Deferred  

Tax 
2014 January 1 or Loss in OCI Net Balance Assets Liabilities 

Accrued retirement 
benefits liability P9,182,395 P820,593 P   -     P10,002,988 P10,002,988 P   -     

Allowance for 
impairment losses 
on receivables 46,686 3,946,968 -     3,993,654 3,993,654 -     

Unrealized foreign 
exchange loss (gain) (1,049,263) 1,463,348 -     414,085 414,085 -     

Actuarial gain on 
defined benefit plan (2,607,962) -     595,374 (2,012,588) -     (2,012,588) 

Net tax assets and 
liabilities P5,571,856 P6,230,909 P595,374 P12,398,139 P14,410,727 (P2,012,588) 

 
 

23. Appropriation of Retained Earnings 
 
The Company has appropriated the amounts of nil, P49,242,500 and P142,466,650  in 
2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively, to finance the acquisition of treasury stock during 
those years.  
 
 

24. Share Capital 
 
a. Capital Stock 
 

 2015 2014 

Authorized - 115,000,000 shares at 10 par 
value shares   

Issued 87,318,270 87,318,270 
Less treasury stock  (33,600,901) (33,600,901)     

Total issued and outstanding 53,717,369 53,717,369 

 
b. Treasury Stock 
 

The movements of treasury stock as at December 31 are as follows: 
 
 2015 2014 2013 

Balance at beginning of year 33,600,901 32,616,051 29,766,718 
Acquisition of treasury stock 

during the year -     984,850 2,849,333 

 33,600,901 33,600,901 32,616,051 

 
 

25. Reclassification of Accounts 
 
Refundable deposit amounting to P25,349,438 made by PAGCOR was reclassified from 
noncurrent to current liability in the 2014 financial statements to conform with the 2015 
presentation. 
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26. Financial Risk and Capital Management Objectives and Policies 
 
The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments: 
 

� Credit Risk 
� Liquidity Risk 
� Market Risk 

 
This note presents information about the Company’s exposure to each of the above risks, 
the Company’s objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risks, and 
the Company’s management of capital.   
 
The main purpose of the Company’s dealings in financial instruments is to fund its 
operations and capital expenditures. 
 
The BOD has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the 
Company’s risk management framework.  The BOD, through the Executive Committee, 
is responsible for developing and monitoring the Company’s risk management policies. 
The committee identifies all issues affecting the operations of the Company and reports 
regularly to the BOD on its activities. 
 
The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the 
risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor 
risks and adherence to limits.  Risk management policies and systems are reviewed 
regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities.  All risks 
faced by the Company are incorporated in the annual operating budget. Mitigating 
strategies and procedures are also devised to address the risks that inevitably occur so as 
not to affect the Company’s operations and detriment forecasted results. The Company, 
through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to develop a 
disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their 
roles and obligations. 
 
The Company’s Audit Committee assists the BOD in fulfilling its oversight 
responsibility of the Company’s corporate governance process relating to the: a) quality 
and integrity of the Company’s financial statements and financial reporting process and 
the Company’s systems of internal accounting and financial controls; b) performance of 
the internal auditors; c) annual independent audit of the Company’s financial statements, 
the engagement of the independent auditors and the evaluation of the independent 
auditors’ qualifications, independence and performance; d) compliance by the Company 
with legal and regulatory requirements, including the Company’s disclosure control and 
procedures; e) evaluation of management’s process to assess and manage the Company’s 
enterprise risk issues; and f) fulfillment of the other responsibilities set out by the BOD.  
The Audit Committee also prepares the reports required to be included in the Company’s 
annual report. 
 
Credit Risk 
Credit risk represents the risk of loss the Company would incur if credit customers and 
counterparties fail to perform their contractual obligations. The Company’s credit risk 
arises principally from the Company’s trade receivables. 
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Exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. Credit checks are being 
performed on all clients requesting credit over certain amounts. Credit is not extended 
beyond authorized limits, established where appropriate through consultation with a 
professional credit vetting organization. Credit granted is subject to regular review, to 
ensure it remains consistent with the clients’ current credit worthiness and appropriate to 
the anticipated volume of business. 
 
The investment of the Company’s cash resources is managed so as to minimize risk while 
seeking to enhance yield. The Company’s holding of cash and money market placements 
exposes the Company to credit risk of the counterparty if the counterparty is unwilling or 
unable to fulfill its obligations and the Company consequently suffers financial loss. 
Credit risk management involves entering into financial transactions only with 
counterparties with acceptable credit rating. The treasury policy sets aggregate credit 
limits of any one counterparty and management annually reviews the exposure limits and 
credit ratings of the counterparties. 
 
Receivable balance is being monitored on a regular basis to ensure timely execution of 
necessary intervention efforts. 
 
The carrying amount of financial assets as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 represents the 
maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting dates is 
as follows: 
 
 Note 2015 2014 

Cash and cash equivalents  
(excluding cash on hand) 4 P238,561,649 P236,282,563 

Receivables - net  5, 14 106,060,371 304,110,706 
Loan receivable  9, 14 15,500,000 15,500,000 
Due from related parties  14 50 350 
Lease deposit 11 78,000,000 78,000,000 

  P438,122,070 P633,893,619 

 
Details of trade receivables from charge customers as at December 31, 2015 and 2014 by 
type of customer are as follows: 
 
 Note 2015 2014 

Airlines  P11,124,817 P7,310,132 
PAGCOR  8,936,199 8,936,199 
Embassy and Government  8,282,208 2,913,503 
Corporations  4,669,473 5,216,038 
Travel agencies  4,045,471 3,389,789 
Credit cards  2,682,713 4,158,078 
Others  7,417,088 4,524,871 

 5 47,157,969 36,448,610 
Less allowance for impairment losses on 

trade receivables - charge customers 5 789,417 387,679 

  P46,368,552 P36,060,931 

 
The Company’s most significant customer, Airlines, accounts for 24% and 20% of the 
trade receivables from charge customers as at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.  
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The aging of trade receivables from charge customers as at December 31, 2015 and 2014 
is as follows: 
 
    2015    2014 

 
Gross 

Amount Impairment 
Gross 

Amount Impairment 
Current  P20,830,706 P   -     P17,083,679 P   -     
Over 30 days 7,508,776 -     7,006,072 -     
Over 60 days 3,772,458 -     2,908,643 -     
Over 90 days 15,046,028 789,417 9,450,216 387,679 
 P47,157,969 P789,417 P36,448,610 P387,679 

 
Receivables from PAGCOR amounting to P8,936,199 included in over 90 days are still 
collectible based on management’s assessment of collection history, thus, no allowance 
for impairment was provided. In addition, any amount outstanding from PAGCOR can 
be offset against the deposit received from it as discussed in Note 20. 
  
The movements in the allowance for impairment losses in respect of trade receivables 
during the year are as follows: 
 
 Note Amount 
Balance at January 1, 2014  P155,621 
Provision in 2014 17 13,156,558 
Balance at December 31, 2014 5 13,312,179 
Provision in 2015 17 94,343 
Balance at December 31, 2015 5 P13,406,522 

 
The allowance for impairment losses on trade receivables as of December 31, 2015 and 
2014 of P13,406,522 and P13,312,179, respectively, relates to outstanding accounts of 
customers that are more than 90 days past due and portion of receivable from PAGCOR 
account.  
 
The table below shows the credit quality of the Company’s financial assets based on their 
historical experience with the corresponding debtors. 
 

 As at December 31, 2015 
 Grade A Grade B Grade C Total 
Cash in banks and 

cash equivalents P238,561,649 P   -     P   -     P238,561,649 
Receivables - net 76,414,143 9,407,190 20,239,038 106,060,371 
Loan receivable -     15,500,000 -     15,500,000 
Due from related parties 50 -     -     50 
Lease deposit 78,000,000 -     -     78,000,000 
 P392,975,842 P24,907,190 P20,239,038 P438,122,070 

 
 As at December 31, 2014 
 Grade A Grade B Grade C Total 

Cash in banks and 
cash equivalents P236,282,563 P   -     P   -     P236,282,563 

Receivables - net 36,388,353 35,140,204 232,582,149 304,110,706 
Loan receivable -     15,500,000 -     15,500,000 
Due from related parties 350 -     -     350 
Lease deposit 78,000,000 -     -     78,000,000 

 P350,671,266 P50,640,204 P232,582,149 P633,893,619 
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Grade A receivables pertain to those receivables from customers that always pay on time 
or even before the maturity date. Grade B includes receivables that are collected on their 
due dates provided that they were reminded or followed up by the Company. Those 
receivables which are collected consistently beyond their due dates and require persistent 
effort from the Company are included under Grade C. 
 
Cash in banks is considered good quality (Grade A) as this pertains to deposits in 
reputable banks. 
 
Liquidity Risk 
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial 
obligations as they fall due. The Company manages liquidity risk by forecasting 
projected cash flows and maintaining a balance between continuity of funding and 
flexibility in operations.  Treasury controls and procedures are in place to ensure that 
sufficient cash is maintained to cover daily operational and working capital requirements. 
Management closely monitors the Company’s future and contingent obligations and sets 
up required cash reserves as necessary in accordance with internal requirements. 
 
The Company’s total current liabilities as at December 31, 2015 and 2014 amounted to 
P133,074,884  and P365,920,433, respectively, which are less than its total current assets 
of P387,159,095 and P582,912,986, respectively. Thus, the Company has sufficient funds 
to pay for its current liabilities and has minimal liquidity risk. 
 
Market Risk 
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, 
interest rates and other market prices will affect the Company’s income or the value of its 
holdings of financial instruments.  The objective of market risk management is to manage 
and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the 
return. 
 
The Company is subject to various market risks, including risks from changes in room 
rates, interest rates and currency exchange rates. 
 
Room Rates 
The risk from room rate changes relates to the Company’s ability to recover higher 
operating costs through price increases to customers, which may be limited due to the 
competitive pricing environment that exists in the Philippine hotel industry and the 
willingness of customers to avail of hotel rooms at higher prices. 
 
The Company minimizes its exposure to risks in changes in room rates by signing 
contracts with short period of expiry so this gives the Company the flexibility to adjust its 
room rates in accordance to market conditions. Also, there are minimal changes in room 
rates in the hotel industry. 
 
Interest Rate Risk 
The Company has no interest-bearing debt obligations to third parties and its receivables 
are subject to fixed interest rates.  As such, the Company has minimal interest rate risk. 
 
Foreign Currency Risk 
The Company is mainly exposed to foreign currency risk on its cash and cash equivalent 
that are a denominated in a currency other than the Company’s functional currency.  The 
currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily the Philippine peso (PHP) and United 
States (US) dollar.  The Company ensures that its exposure is kept to an acceptable level 
by buying or selling foreign currencies at spot rates where necessary to address short-
term imbalances. 
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Fair Values 
The fair values together with the carrying amounts of the financial assets and liabilities 
shown in the statements of financial position are as follows: 
 
    2015    2014 

 
Carrying 
Amount Fair Value 

Carrying 
Amount Fair Value 

Cash and cash equivalents P239,183,149 P239,183,149 P237,078,063 P237,078,063 
Receivables - net 106,060,371 106,060,371 304,110,706 304,110,706 
Loan receivable 15,500,000 15,500,000 15,500,000 15,500,000 
Due from related parties 50 50 350 350 
Lease deposit 78,000,000 78,000,000 78,000,000 78,000,000 
Accounts payable and accrued 

expenses 83,099,316 83,099,316 77,919,262 77,919,262 
Due to related parties 6,798,190 6,798,190 6,090,243 6,090,243 
Refundable deposits 30,746,111 30,746,111 56,119,819 56,119,819 
Other current liabilities* 12,232,261 12,232,261 20,752,217 20,752,217 

*Excluding payables to government     

 
Estimation of Fair Values 
The following summarizes the major methods and assumptions used in estimating the 
fair values of financial instruments reflected in the table: 
 
Cash 
The fair value of cash approximates its carrying amount due to the short-term nature of 
this asset. 
 
Receivables/Due from Related Parties/Loan Receivable/Accounts Payable and Accrued 

Expenses/Due to Related Parties/Other Current Liabilities Except for Output VAT 
Liability and Withholding Taxes Payables, and Deferred Rental 

Current receivables are reported at their net realizable values, at total amounts less 
allowances for estimated uncollectible accounts.  Current liabilities are stated at amounts 
reasonably expected to be paid within the next twelve months or within the Company’s 
operating cycle.  Due to/from related parties and loan receivable are payable on demand. 
 
Short-term Investments/Other Noncurrent Assets 
Short-term investments and other noncurrent assets are interest bearing. The carrying 
value of short-term investments approximates its fair value, because the effective interest 
rate used for discounting the short-term investment and other noncurrent assets 
approximates the current market rate of interest for similar transactions. 
 
Capital Management 
The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to increase the value of 
shareholders’ investment and maintain high growth by applying free cash flow to 
selective investments. The Company sets strategies with the objective of establishing a 
versatile and resourceful financial management and capital structure. 
 
The Chief Financial Officer has overall responsibility for monitoring of capital in 
proportion to risk. Profiles for capital ratios are set in the light of changes in the 
Company’s external environment and the risks underlying the Company’s business 
operations and industry.  
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The Company monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-equity ratio which is calculated 
as total debt divided by total equity. Total debt is equivalent to accounts payable and 
accrued expenses, income tax payable, due to related parties, other current liabilities, 
refundable deposits and accrued retirement benefits liability. Total equity comprises 
mainly of the capital stock, additional paid-in capital and retained earnings. 
 
There were no changes in the Company’s approach to capital management during the 
year.  
 
As at December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Company is compliant with the minimum public 
float requirement by the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE). 
 
The Company has 115,000,000 shares registered with the SEC as at December 31, 2015 
and 2014. As at December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Company issue/offer price is P17.80 
and P25, respectively, based on the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE) website. The total 
number of shareholders is 506 as at December 31, 2015 and 2014. 
 
 

27. Contingencies 
 
The Company, in the ordinary course of business, is a party to certain assessment, claims 
and litigation. The outcome of  these assessments, claims and litigation cannot be 
presently determined. In the opinion of management and the Company’s legal counsel, 
the eventual liability arising from these assessments, claims and litigation, if any, will not 
have a material effect on the Company’s financial position or results of operations. 
 
 

28. Supplementary Information Required by Bureau of Internal Revenue (BIR) 
 
In addition to the disclosures mandated under PFRSs, and such other standards and/or 
conventions as may be adopted, companies are required by the BIR to provide in the 
notes to the financial statements, certain supplementary information for the taxable year. 
The amounts relating to such information may not necessarily be the same with those 
amounts disclosed in the financial statements which were prepared in accordance with 
PFRSs. The following is the tax information required for the taxable year ended 
December 31, 2015: 
 
I. Based on RR No. 15-2010 

 
A. Value Added Tax (VAT) 

 

1. Output VAT P52,953,358 

Account title used:  
Basis of the Output VAT:  

Vatable sales P441,277,985 
Exempt sales 7,330,630 
Zero rated sales 2,729,944 

 P451,338,559 
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2. Input VAT  
Beginning of the year P6,726,359 
Current year’s domestic purchases:  

a. Goods for resale/manufacture or further 
processing 5,914,870 

b. Services lodged under other accounts 19,690,099 
Less: Applied input VAT during the year 26,752,037 

Balance at the end of the year P5,579,291 

 
B. Withholding Taxes 

 

Tax on compensation and benefits P19,710,537 
Creditable withholding taxes 8,087,422 
Final withholding taxes 50,000 

 P27,847,959 

 
C. All Other Taxes (Local and National) 

 

Other taxes paid during the year recognized under   
“Taxes and licenses” account under Operating 
Expenses  
Real estate taxes P9,265,681 
License and permit fees 514,952 
Others 542,016 

 P10,322,649 

 
D. Deficiency Tax Assessments 

 
Period Covered Amount*

2001 P765,104 
2008 262,576,825 

 P263,341,929 

*Amount of basic deficiency tax assessments, whether protested or not. 

 
E. Tax Cases 

 
As at December 31, 2015, the Company has the following tax cases: 
 
a. 2001 - Settled basic tax due of P403,130 on March 2010, as agreed on the 

Letter of Abatement filed. Request to waive the interest and surcharges of 
P346,140 is still for approval at BIR LTS. 

 
b. 2008 - The Company filed a petition for review with the CTA on February 

20, 2015 to invalidate the collection proceedings of the BIR.  
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